
utlnU 1'1.f71011S 

ECONOMIC 
AND 

N~TIONS UNW 

SOCIAL COUNCIL 

CON SEll 
ECONOMIQUE 
ET SOCIAL 

UNRESTRICTED 

E/CONF.S/C.l/SR.ll.Rev.l 
15 November 1949 

UNITED NATIONS CONF"€Rto:NCE ON ROAD AND MOTOR ~ANSP<RT 

Ca.Da'M'EE I ON LEGAL AND GENJiRAL MATTERS AND DOOUKENTS 

Sw.MARY R~CORD OF THZ EL~TI1 ~ING 

Held at the Palais dee Natione, Geneva, 
on Monday, 5 September 1949 at 10 a.m. 

CHAIRMAN: Mr. MIKAOUI (Lebanon) 

Contents: 

Mr. HOST!E 

CONSID-:RATION OF' D..,~F'T PROVISI ONS FOR INS'ffiTION 
IN TH~ CO~NTION ON J:l.OAD 'IRAFFIC SUP~ITTED BY 
nr~ 'ro~fU'G PARTY OF 'l'JfE CO?-o/I'IT~ pages 2 - 7 



t / '::m!F. S/ C .1/SH . ll . Rev .1 
pa;:-e 2. 

:0NSIDi!:RATIO~ OF DRAFT PHOVISIOt~.S F'O!<.. lNSEF.TION :N TiiE CONVE~~TION m~ 
?;"1.\D TR,;FFIC Si.J!:<i·~':'Tt.D BY '!'HI. \·:ORf.lNG rA?.TY o: TEE. c.:iJ•:!TTEE (~:orl<ing 
p"tper w/:rr/ 22/49) . 

Report by ,\c t.ing Cha i nnan of the l:iorking Party . 

Mr . VON!< (Net herlands), yho had bet?n in the Chatr -at mo~tin~s 
'-

of the \•,'o r king Party during the absence of its Chairml'lr., i'-!r . Rumpler 

(France) , explained that t he io:orking Party had discussed the propc'sd 

of the United Kin~dcrr. repr esentat i ve that there should be i llserted in 

the Convention a provision setting a limit to the time during which 

drivers and vehicles should be considered ~s being i~ i r.ternational 

traffic . Altt.ough thrt.t prop0sal applied particularly t o Chapterr. I V 

and 1f of t he Convention , the Part y had de:cid~d tc recorn."!!~:'ld t hP..t the 

t ext which it ha•i drafted to meet that aim (Working PapP.r !·:/RT/ 22/ L.9, 

secti <'n l) .:>houlci be ins erted in Article I, 30 that it. .,·ould apply to 

t he lil".c>le :::onvEnticn, an:i net :r.6rely to Chapte rs IV and V t he r eCl!' . 

111ben considering t he advisability of inserting in :1t her c:hapters 

of t h .:; Convention "introductic.-:-~s of t he type which the Conmittee !11vi 

dceHed should be i nserted i:. Ch'ipter !I (see Dc-cument E/co•:p. 0./C .I/s::. 8 , 

pa~es 6 And 7 ), the Party had decided to reccmme nd th.-) ins P. r ticn ln 

Article 20 of t he text given in Section 2 of the Working Pa~e r. 

The dr aft Article A (Disputes ) recommended by the P.:trty had b~en 

drafted on the b&5:ta of thP. correspcnding Article i n the draft Convention 

on Fr eedor.J of Information . 

The text r ecor.>:nended b;i :-hi! i-'a rty fC'r insertion in .-\rticle B 

relat ed onl y to t he question of t,;h: ch ;Jt<:<tes shoul d be in vi ted to send 

r 6presentativts to Conferences to consider proposed amfn~ents tr the 

Conv~ntion; th ~ Party had not considered other que stions rai. sed tty 

,\rti cl ..- B of t tc Secretariat, draft, s.ince t hey "1-Jer• cl?s.:l y conn~ct td 

-...-l.th Articles \: ar.d D which had nt~t b~en referred t o the rart.y . 

At. a meetin,; held imm~diately bef cre the pr esent meeting of t he 

CoiW!li tte~ , tho .\\"orking Party had a.gr EH:;d t hat thE. dr-'\ft of Article E 

(Signature and Acct·ptanee of the Conv~ntion) "'ttich :i.t had p:r~ parfld 

(\•lo rking Pap~r W/F:i'/22/49, page 2 ) should b e amended py addinr, in 

par a graph 3, aft(:r th~~ \·lOrd "Article .", the sentence;· rtrt shall also 

be op~n l or acc,;ssicn on behalf 6£ any trust terri~r-i es of which th~ 

Unit ed :~ations is an a.:hr • .:.ni strative authority"; and by tr?J nsform"i.n.; 



E/ c-:n::-. 8/C. : / sE,ll, Rev .1 
page 3 

the last sentenc e of para.eraph 3 into a nE-" parP.graph 4 . That t ext 

had been dra.f'tt:d on the bas is of corrc::;ponding a rticle ! in th~ Conventio1: 

on Freedom of Informat i on . The Party had discussed at length the 

advi:sibi lity of laying dov.'Tl that the Convention ·s hnuld be opt-'n for 

accession on behalf o f t he fn:..: t erritor y of Tri es t e , but, a lthou.,-:b no 

finn deci si on had been t aken on that point , it had been a ppar r:nt t h'lt 

the majerity ~re opposed t o the i nelusion o f sueh a provision , 

By including in Draft Articl<! G (Territor ill f. pol :i C'\ t i bn ) the words 

"undf3r the provis i ons of ;.rti c l e 2n, t.h e .f'a.rty had endeavour~d to obvia te 

diffieultio!J arising out of t he fact that it had not ytt.been decicod f:ils.lly 

whieh of the ann exes .c~hould bl' obligato ry . 

Arti cle 20 , paragPsph 2. (Working paper 'ti/RT/22/49, Seetittn 2) . 

Mr . PANTELIC (Yugoslavia) said that he was opposed to the 

inelusion in paragr aph 2 of Arti cle 20 of t he wor ds 11a t all t imes". If 

they were ineludeJI ~nd the ,\ rt i ele wer e a pplied strictly, a dri ver i n 

a. cour.try f~r~ign to hL~ woul d net even be able t o proeeed t o the nearest 

garage if, as a r~ ~ult of an aeei dent, the vehicle he was drivin~ eP~ eed 

to COIIfonn to the provisi ons e f Annex e. 

Mr. VONK (tl! <!. tberlands) said that nati onal authoritie~ 

euetomarily pr!rmi tted bot h driver s of v ehi c les in i nter Mtional traffie 

and drivers of vehicl P.~ in tl:t?ir ov.n country to proeeLd t o t he n·.;:lr Ast 

garage wi th Jue care, if, as a r esult of £o~ :najeure, th e vehi~le th~y 

were driving ceased to conform to nAtional regulations , 

The SECRETARY poin ted out t hat, if the wo rds 11at a l l ti·1V!S 11 

were deleted, .it IT'.ight be arr.ued that p~rAgraph 2 ()f Article 20 would 

npply to a motor vehicle or a trailer only a t t he moment i t was a ctu"l. l l.Y 

eroasing an i ntern.1.tional fronti vr. 

Mr, de SYDOt1 ( Swt.d-=r.), Mr . SCBAEPIA .. AN (NP.th~rlands), Hr. 

HOCKING (Unit ect Kin~:,do·:1), Mr . FOLEY (United Sts.t es o f .'Jnsrica ) and S r , 

m.JBERT {FrancE:!) 81\id tha t the-.f could agree to the d~letion of the words 

11at all times11 , sinc e such dt:.ldion would 1n no way eh"l.n?,~ the i.ieaning 

of the t. t:Xt . 

Hr. r--or:~.~ITI (:taly) seid thot H.~lian r egubtions, 

corresponding to t he provi~:i.on in the dr a ft of pan g r aph 2 of .\r ticlt: .GC' 

subm~ tt ~r4 by t he Working Party , cunt .:J. i n.::rj the word "constant l y" . 



E/CONF.8/C.I/SR, ll.Rev. l 
page 4 

Ihe Committee as;reed to a\ioQt the d,.aft of Jj?aragraph 2 of Ad~ 

20 submitted by the i'iorking .Par ty with the deletion of the words 11 at 

all times", and t o r eqYJist the Chairman to invite ~he Pre-;lde:l~._Qf_the: 

Conf erence t o t ake steps to enstt"e that that parag::--aptt would be consj de red 

either i n plenar;'{.. or by Committee n . as the la t ter might d~em appropriat~ . 

New paragraph to be added to Ar t i cle 1. 
Secti on l) . 

(Working paper 'w/H.T/22/49, 

:·Jr • . 1\.ZKOUL (L~;banon) suggested th~l it. w;;ulu bE: rr.or~:: upparent 

t hat the words, which the Party had r ecommended should be ln:;ert~-:<1 as 

a new par agraph i n Article l, applied only to vehicl~:: s in int~rn.1tional 

t r affic, if t hey wer e inser t 0d in per agraph l of Ar ticle 1. 

Mr. BUZZI-~UATRI~I (hustric) asked whether the adoptio~ of tht 

t ext pr oposed woul d not be uquiv~lent t~ an agr~ Lmcn t that Cont~acting 

St at es sh:>Uld r elinquish c~rtain extra--t.erritorial right s, If it were 

adopted W)Uld di plomats be rcquir~d t o pas~ driving t ests in the country 

to which th~y wer e accr~ditGd at the expiry of th~ tw~lvo-months p~riod? 

And would Governments of countries under rrtllit~ry occupation which 

became pnrti ee t o the Convt.;:ntion be obliged to lll.!l.kE; drivut·e of th e 

occupation for ces pass t ests af ter th•:Y h:: d been in the count ry f o; mor e 

than a yoar ? 

Mr . VONK {Ne!-r1crlnnds) said tr.at s i nce the t ext w.1s dra ft vd i n 

a negative fo rm, its odoption would not compel any Contracting St:t 1 ~.: t o 

test fo r eign dr i ver s retM.ining within its terr itory f or a continuo\.s 

period exceeding one year; nor would it pr event ~y Contracting s~at~ 

f rom testi ng t hem. If the text wer e adopted) a membe:. of thv ai plomat ic 

corps in any Contracting State need not pass a. t 0s t in th<•t count:-y, 

provided he did not remain there c~ntinuously for mJre than a y~ar .. 

Mr . C~TTERET (Switzerl und) fel~ tha t the er~mple given by the 

Austrian r epresentat i ve: wa s not very happily chosen , The provisions ~r 

the Convention would only apply t o mot or vehicle~, traihrs or driver s in 

international traffic; in Switzerland at l east ; diplomat8 accreditod to 

the Government would not be aff~ct~d. 

In r eplying to the direct quL'stion asked by the Austrian r uprt.;:Stuta

t i ve , he would like t o make cl ear that the objtct of the Swiss authoriti~s 

in inviting dipl omats ac~r~dited to the Swiss Gvvernrr&nt t o comply with 

certain formalities, was to bring t o thei r notice th~ speci~l provisi~ns uf 

Swiss traffic r egulations :md to dr aw their attention t o the d~gers of 



f/ CONF. e/C. I/SR.ll Rt.:v .l 
page 5. 

'!'ht: CHri::Rti.AN s!ii d :.hc.t the point raised by the representative 

of A.ustr'ia was extr~::mely i ;npcTt?.ot , .s\.ri C.f· somt nation!il "!ut hor ities did 

wi. th i nternationa l d r i vin!.~ pr.ffiu ts , to :1ri v o;; i n t he.1.r ter rltori t:s without 

a dom<;stic p.: r mit , Th'l.t concerned , not only diplomats , but a l so 

tou r i sis who •.nt~::rcd a foreign country by C3.r . It was cl osely 

C(Jnnt:.cted lli th the importan t •:J.utstj,on of whether drivers in a f o r eip.n 

country were legiD.l.)' prote ct ~rl wh t:n th>:y were involved in an accident . 

But it might b e advisable to defer discussi~m o.f tlH: point until the 

Comm.lttee ca.'71<: t o cor. sider ,~ rtiolc 22 of t!1<: Ecr: draft ( Doc unH:.'nt 

E/CONF. 8/ 3 ) . 

Mr. BEST ( United Kingdom) 3aid that the adoption of sonc• 

such prov'l~inn 'ls that in th~ ne:11 pu.ragn .ph r ecommended for :l.dditirm ~o 

l1r t:c1e 1 by the Working Party was e :; :! antia.l; but, sincE:' it hac:i been 

dr:ift~;d i n a neg.<1tive fo rm, it.s adoption would not mEtJ(e it ohlir,!'.tory 

for the Authoritiet:~ of Contr acting Stott.; s to comp£1 all for~-;i r,n dr\.v t:rs 

who rfflnainf~d in that StatE: for a continuous p~o riod of mo n~ t h.ln onF 

yea r to take a t 6st . He agreed with the Chairtr/'m th'l.t it would be 

advisabl~ t~ defE:r di scussion of t hP p•int r~ieed by t he r~prosunt~tive 

of ;,ustria until Article 22 of t h e ECE draft came to be dbcussed. 

Th t: Commi t tee una.nilll()usl'L._agr eed : (a J t o ado~~~mnendrtticn 

of t h~~ Harking Party that the tE-xt in aect ion l of \.\'orking p:\per 

W/RT/22/49 be insertE:d as 3n additi•n~l ~ragraph in Article l of th~ 

Convention ; md (b ) , t o diacuFJ~ i'urt!)_cr when it cane tr cons)der 

Artiele 22 of the ECE dra f t i_oo~ent~.t!L§hl..the m:est i en of the 

d.riv:i ng pemit.s of persons who ... E_~?:,in!:_d for m9.•e tQlfJl one ye9,r 1n a 

countrv o.f which thtv were not nar.lonele . 

Article A (Working paper W/RT/~2/k9 , Section 3) . 

Mr. AZKOlJL (Le~anon ) sa.i d th<lt if the draft o f .\rtiole :\ 

submitterl by the Working Party \'Jere adopted, Farti as to a diopute . 
concer ning the .ioterpr etation or applic.'ltion of the conventi on woul d not 

b~. compellr-;tl to r~:::fer the di spute· t o the International Cour t of Justi e e , 

if t hey agr 0ed t o try t o settl e the dispute by other means , but fail~d 

to do so . If the Ccmmi tt~e wished t o r~con~Bnd that disputes s hould b~ 

refe rred to t he Inte. rnation:-<1 Court of Just. i ce, unless Slf:.t tlt.d by othe r 



E/CONF.8/C.!/a~. ll. Rev,l 
page 6 

means, the wo:-ds "succeed in re~l.'lf asre1111ent b7 anCJt.her mode of 

settlernent 11 :should bo substituted fox- tb~ worde uaaree to another 

mode 1>! settlement" , 

Mr. BEST (United Kingdom) aaid that Contraeting States 

ehould not be compelled to refer to the International Court of 

Justice. any dispute concerning tha convention. Acco~glf he 

wggeated the substitution ot the ·.rord 11Jn81" !or t.hQ word "shall" 

in the t i rst line. 

Mr. VONK ( Netherlands ) said that the Working Party had 

considered that parties to a disput e c~eerning the c~nventieo 

ehould first attempt tA settle it br negotiation; i! the.y did npt 

succeed, they should att empt t~ sett le it by ml:fans other than referring 

it to the Interttational Court of Juetioe J it they etill did not 

euceeed1 then they should reter it t o the International Court o! 

Justice. It the Working Party' e text were adopted, a di~f\Ute tnight 

be referred immediately to the International Court o! Juetice, but 

others, and perhap~ many other& , might be ae~tled b,y other means, 

!or example, b.r discussion at a meeting or the Inland Transpert 

Committee of the Economic Cenm1baism !er Europe. 

the ~nvention sh, uld be r eferred t o the International Court o! 

·Juetice only i,f the parties t hereto eould not. succocd in set.tli11g it 

b,y direct negotiation or other meane. 

Mr. SCHAEPMAN (Netherlands) said t hat the text subBitted 

by the Wor king Pal'ty might give rise to misunderstanding, and 

proposed that it be amended by repl e.eing everything etter the word 

11negotiat1ons 11 and the end or the third line1 by the sentence 11 or by 

&IV other mode of settlement agreed upon bT the eontr&eting states 

concerned, shall be referred t o the International Court of Juatiee 

tor deeio1on11 • 

Mr. FOLEY (United States ot America) eu"'pported the proposal 

o! the reprooentative ot the Netherlands. 



E/CUNF .8/ C. I / SR ,ll .Rev.l 
page 7 

Mr. LUKACJ Executive Secretary1 pointed out that at the 

second session of the General heaembly it had been decided t hat it w~uld 

be desirable t o i nser t, particularly in conventions or t r eaties con

cluded u:lder the auspices of the United Nations, clauaes providing; 

without pr e judice to Ar t i cle 95 of t he Charter, for the submission of 

disputes which might arise fr.:>rn the inter pretation or application of 

such conventions or trea~ie s 1 prefer ably and a s far as possible to the 

International Court e> f Justice (General Assembly Resol ut i on 171 (II ) C.2). 

The proposal of the re:~esentative of the Nether lands was in harm=ny with 

t hat decision. 

Abdul Karim·SAFWAT Bey (Egypt) said that he could ag:· :-: ':.J t he 

adoption of the draft of ~ticle A submitted by the We>rking P~rty, 

but neverth~less pref err ed the text pr opos od by the repre s ~ntative 

of the Nether~andG , which was ~Qre l cgica:ly drafted, 

l-tr. de SYDOW (Sweden ) a.."ld t-ir , B:U-..ERJI (India ) sai d t hat 

they could agree b the adoption of the p:-i.nciple in the tE:xt 

pr op,Jsed by the re pr esentative ,)f the Netherlands • . 

~. BDONDEEL (Belgium) said that it should be made clear 

which party sh':>uld refer to t hE: I nt ernati:mal Court of J ustice sue!"! 

disputes cvncerning the convention as coul d not be settled by ott:ec 

meanJ. 

Mr. PANTELIC (Yugoslavia) agreed with the United Kingdom 

r epr es enta tive that p~rties t ':> disputes c~ncerning the c~nvention 

should not be C·:>mpelled to refer them to the Inter national Court of 

Justice, and supported his proposal that the word 11may11 should be 

substituted fo r t he w:>r d "shall " , 

.11r , SHJI.EPZ..J..N (r-.e .. he:-l ands ) c.:>uld not agree to the subst:!.

tuti-:>n of the wor d "may'' tor t he word "shall"; · .s uch a.n amendment 

w.::Juld f t:.."'td ~entally alte:- h~.n teJrt, 

The meetin...e......r.ose at l.J)_l?.J!!· 




